No. 2020-02
Meeting of: 04/21/2020

CITY OF GARDENA

PLANNING & ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY COMMISSION

Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda
Council Chamber at City Hall
1700 W. 162" Street, Gardena, California
Website: www.cityofgardena.org

AGENDA

Tuesday, April 21, 2020
7:00 P.M.

In order to minimize the spread of the COVID 19 virus Governor Newsom has issued
Executive Orders that temporarily suspend requirements of the Brown Act. Please be
advised that the Council Chambers are closed to the public and that all the Gardena
Planning and Environmental Quality Commissioners may attend this meeting
telephonically.

1. This meeting is being conducted utilizing teleconferencing and electronic means
consistent with State of California Executive Order N-29-20 dated March 17, 2020,
regarding the COVID-19 pandemic. The live stream of the meeting may be viewed on the
ZOOM app. Details on how to access this live stream can be found on the City’s website
at https://www.cityofgardena.org/agendas-planning-environmental-commission/.

2. Observers may view the meeting by downloading the ZOOM app and clicking onto the
following link:
https://zoom.us/j/916941653637?pwd=eVFkL1BRT2tIMmdZVThnb3k1U210UT09

3. You may also dial in using your phone:
United States: +1 (669) 900 9128
Webinar ID: 916 9416 5363

4. We strongly encourage that if you wish to make a comment on a specific agenda item, to
please submit your comment via email to aacuna@cityofgardena.org prior to the meeting.
Comments will be accepted via email up until 7:00pm on Tuesday, April 21, 2020.
Comments may also be submitted on the app ZOOM in the chat box. Please try to limit to
200 words or less. Comments pertaining to a specific item must be received during the
public hearing portion of that item. Comments made during the meeting will be read into
the record.

5. Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Commission after distribution
of the agenda packet are available for public inspection on the City’s website at
https://www.cityofgardena.org/agendas-planning-environmental-commission/.

6. The City of Gardena, in complying with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA),
requests individuals who require special accommodations to access, attend and/or

Page 1 of 3



http://www.cityofgardena.org/
https://www.cityofgardena.org/agendas-planning-environmental-commission/
https://zoom.us/j/91694165363?pwd=eVFkL1BRT2tlMmdZVThnb3k1U210UT09
mailto:aacuna@cityofgardena.org
https://www.cityofgardena.org/agendas-planning-environmental-commission/

w0 D

No. 2020-02
Meeting of: 04/21/2020

participate in the City meeting due to disability, to please contact the Planning Division by
phone (310) 217-9524 or email CDDPIlanningandZoning@cityofgardena.org at least 6
hours prior to the scheduled special meeting to ensure assistance is provided.

The City of Gardena thanks you in advance for taking all precautions to prevent
spreading the COVID 19 virus.

PUBLIC COMMENT: The Planning and Environmental Quality Commission will hear from the

public on any item on the agenda or any item of interest that is not on the agenda. However, the
Commission cannot take action on any item not scheduled on the agenda. These items may be
referred for administrative action or scheduled on a future agenda.

STANDARDS OF BEHAVIOR THAT PROMOTE CIVILITY
AT ALL PUBLIC MEETINGS

e Treat everyone courteously;
e Listen to others respectfully;
e Exercise self-control;
e Give open-minded consideration to all viewpoints;
e Focus on the issues and avoid personalizing debate; and
e Embrace respectful disagreement and dissent as democratic rights,
inherent components of an inclusive public process, and tools for forging sound decisions.

Thank you for your attendance and cooperation.

Call meeting to order
Roll Call
Approval of Minutes — March 3, 2020

Zone Code Amendment #2-20

The Planning Commission will consider an ordinance making changes to Title 18 of the City’s
Zoning Code, primarily relating to residential development standards throughout the City and
provide extensions for entittements. The Planning Commission will make a recommendation to
the City Council on the ordinance. Staff has determined that the Zone Code Amendment would
not have any significant effects and is therefore exempt from CEQA.

Project Location: Citywide

Oral Communications from the Public

Community Development Director’'s Report

Page 2 of 3


mailto:CDDPlanningandZoning@cityofgardena.org

No. 2020-02
Meeting of: 04/21/2020

7. Planning & Environmental Quality Commissioners’ Reports

8. Adjournment

Dated this 16" day of April, 2020

/sl RAYMOND BARRAGAN
Raymond Barragan, SECRETARY
Planning and Environmental Quality Commission

Page 3 of 3



CITY OF GARDENA
PLANNING & ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY COMMISSION
TUESDAY, MARCH 3, 2020, MEETING

* * *

Called to order by Chair Jackson at 7:00 P.M.

ROLL CALL
Present: Dale Pierce, Deryl Henderson, Stephen Langley, Steve
Sherman, Brenda Jackson
Absent: None
Also in Attendance: Lisa Kranitz, Assistant City Attorney

Raymond Barragan, Acting Community Development Director
John F. Signo, Senior Planner

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Led by Chair Jackson.
APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A motion was made by Commissioner Pierce and seconded Commissioner Henderson
to approve the minutes of the meeting on December 17, 2019. The minutes were
approved 5-0-0.

Ayes: Pierce, Henderson, Langley, Sherman, Jackson
Noes: None
Absent: None

PUBLIC HEARING

Agenda Item #5

Zone Code Amendment #1-20

Ordinance 1817 would amend Chapter 18.43 of the Gardena Municipal Code regarding
density bonus. The ordinance would make the City’s density bonus requirements
consistent with recent legislative changes to the density bonus law. Staff had determined
that the Zone Code Amendment would not have any significant effects and is therefore
exempt from CEQA.

Project Location: Citywide

Assistant City Attorney Lisa Kranitz presented the staff report and recommended that the
Planning Commission approve Resolution No. PC 1-20 recommending City Council adopt
Ordinance 1817.

Commissioner Henderson asked a question regarding work force housing and how that
fit into affordable housing.

Ms. Kranitz stated it would depend on the income level.

Chair Jackson asked whether the Single-Room Occupancy units that had come before
the Planning Commission were considered affordable housing.

Ms. Kranitz stated they were proposed as market rate units.
1



Senior Planner John F. Signo stated that staff had recently received inquiries regarding
developing more Single-Room Occupancy projects.

Chair Jackson opened the public hearing, recognized there were no comments from the
public and closed the public hearing.

MOTION: It was moved by Vice Chair Sherman and seconded by Commissioner Langley
to adopt Resolution No. PC 1-20.

The motion passed by the following roll call vote:

Ayes: Sherman, Langley, Pierce, Henderson, Jackson
Noes: None
Absent: None

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE PUBLIC
There were no oral communications from the public.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Acting Community Development Director Raymond Barragan provided the
Commissioners information regarding upcoming events help by the Recreation and
Human Services Department as well as the annual Form 700 documents that were due
by April 1, 2020.

PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY COMMISSION REPORTS

Chair Jackson asked about the maintenance of the landscaping of the Best Western
Hotel.

Mr. Barragan stated that he would discuss this issue with the property owner.
ADJOURNMENT
Chair Jackson adjourned the meeting at 7:32 P.M.

Respectfully submitted,

RAYMOND BARRAGAN, SECRETARY
Planning and Environmental Quality Commission

BRENDA JACKSON, CHAIR
Planning and Environmental Quality Commission



CITY OF GARDENA
PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY COMMISSION

STAFF REPORT
RESOLUTION NO. PC 2-20
ZC#2-20
AGENDA ITEM #5

MEETING DATE:  April 21, 2020
TO: Chair Jackson and Members of the Planning and Environmental Quality

Commission
FROM: Raymond Barragan, Director

Community Development Department
APPLICANT: City of Gardena
LOCATION: Citywide
REQUEST: Zoning Code Amendment to Residential Provisions

Staff has determined that these changes would not have the possibility of
having any significant impact and qualify as minor alterations in land use
limitations therefore the ordinance qualifies for a Notice of Exemption.

BACKGROUND

Last year the City Council adopted changes to the Zoning Code primarily relating to residential
development. Staff has continued to review the Zoning Code and has had input from developers
and architects within the City as to provisions that are creating impediments to their projects,
especially with regard to providing higher density housing. On February 19, 2020, staff held a
Housing Standards Workshop with several developers and interested parties on how to improve
the Zoning Code and eliminate housing constraints. For example, development standards in the
R-4 zone, which has a minimum density of 20 units per acre were basically the same as the
standards for the R-3 zone, which has a maximum density of 17 units per acre, making it very
difficult to reach the 20 unit per acre minimum. Additionally, certain standards such as setbacks,
open space, and parking make it difficult to develop multifamily housing. The State of California
has identified a statewide shortage in housing making it imperative for cities to find opportunities
to accommodate new housing. As part of the next housing cycle, the City of Gardena’s regional
housing needs assessment (RHNA) is expected to be over 5,700 dwelling units. In order to be in
compliance with the statewide need, it is important that the City maintain an up-to-date Zoning
Code that provides for new housing development.

Due to the current economic hardships stemming from the lockdown, the Zoning Code
Amendment will automatically extend any permit issued prior to March 16, 2020, for six months



April 21, 2020
ZC #2-20
Page 2 of 4

from the date of expiration. Moving forward, the Zoning Code Amendment will allow the
Community Development Director to grant one or more time extensions for up to six months
each upon a showing of good cause for site plan reviews, conditional use permits, and
administrative adjustments. The Planning Commission will have similar authority for variances.

The Planning Commission is being asked to recommend approval of the Zoning Ordinance to the
City Council.

SUMMARY OF CHANGES

A redlined version of the Code changes is attached. The changes relate to the following subject
matters:

Deletion of minimum dwelling unit size in all zones except R-1

Clarification that distances between buildings applies only to buildings within the project site

Reduction in storage space sizes from 200 to 120 cubic feet in the R-3, R-4, and MU Overlay
zones and modification that storage spaces can be allowed in outside closets or below
stairways in addition to garages

Change in Development standards for the R-4 zone:

O

O O O O

Maximum density changed to 30 units per acre for any parcel over Y2 acre instead of 27
units per acre between '2 and 1 acre

Building height increased from 35 feet to 40 feet with an additional 5 feet for
architectural projections

Clarification that setbacks are calculated from project boundaries in cluster developments
Distances between buildings reduced to that governed by the Building Code

Tandem parking allowed, but not for guest spaces

Usable open space reduced from 600 to 300 SF per unit and can be divided as determined
by the developer

Changes in the Mixed Use development standards

o Properties can be developed for purely residential uses

o Minimum lot area reduced to '2 acre from one acre

o Maximum density changed to 30 units per acre for any parcel over Y4 acre instead of 25
units per acre between '2 and 1 acre

o Building height increased from 35 feet to 40 feet with an additional 5 feet for
architectural projections when adjacent to R-1 or R-2

o Setback standards modified

o Distances between buildings reduced to that governed by the Building Code

o Open space to be divided as determined by the developer

o Tandem parking allowed for all residential and live/work parking, but not for guest
spaces

Specific Plans

o No longer required for housing project greater than 5 acres



April 21, 2020
ZC #2-20
Page 3 of 4

o Can use specific plan for a single lot
o Changes to what must be included in a specific plan to eliminate certain requirements not
set forth in state law
e Parking Standards
o For anything over 20 dwelling units per acre, only 1 space needs to be enclosed; second
space may be in a covered parking area
o Studio space - 1 space per unit
o 25% of non-residential parking may be compact spaces
o In R-4 and MU Opverlay, if 4 or more guest parking spaces are required, 25% may be
compact
o Stall length for parallel parking reduced from 25’ to 22’
o Interior garage dimensions reduced from 20’ x 20’ to 19’ width x 18’ depth
e Lighting standards revised for multi-family developments to require 1-foot candle average
for public/common area
e Site Plans
o Allows Community Development Director to approve site plan review for minor changes
to existing buildings and expansions of no more than 10 percent
o Eliminates certain factors for approval of Site Plans including findings that the uses are
consistent with the intent and general purpose of the General Plan and Municipal Code,
and compatibility and overconcentration of uses in the immediate area
e Time Extensions
o Automatic six-month time extensions will be granted for entitlements approved prior to
March 16, 2020
o Moving forward, the Community Development Director will be able to grant multiple
time extensions for site plan reviews, conditional use permit, and administrative
adjustments
o The Planning Commission will have similar authority extending variances

ZONE CHANGE ANALYSIS

Gardena Municipal Code Section 18.52.010 provides that whenever the public necessity,
convenience, general welfare, or good land use and zoning practices require, the council may
amend, supplement or change the zoning regulations in accordance with the procedures of the
California Government Code, as supplemented by the provisions of the GMC.

These changes allow applicants to provide the densities that are set forth in the Zoning Code and
removes impediments from letting developers decide on the best way to design their projects.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This Ordinance is categorically exempt from CEQA pursuant to the common sense exemption
set forth in Guidelines section 15061(b)(3) that CEQA only applies to projects which have the



April 21, 2020
ZC #2-20
Page 4 of 4

potential for causing a significant effect on the environment and where it can be seen with
certainty that there is no possibility that the activity will have a significant effect, the activity is
not subject to CEQA. None of the changes to the development standards and definitions set
forth above would change the density, intensity, or allowed uses or would have other effects on
the environment. The changes are primarily a reorganization and clarification of the existing
code and practices relating to residential development standards. For these same reasons, the
Ordinance also qualifies for an exemption under CEQA Guidelines section 15305 (Class 5) for
minor alterations in land use limitations in areas with an average slope of less than 20%. No part
of Gardena has a slope in excess of 20%. The changes are not for any specific project and
therefore will not impact any environmental resource of hazardous or critical concern, will not
create cumulative impacts, or impacts to scenic highways, hazardous waste sites, or historical
resources. Because this is an ordinance pertaining to citywide development standards there will
not be any significant effects on the environment due to unusual circumstances.

NOTICE

As a zoning ordinance, a public hearing is required. Because the Ordinance creates city-wide
changes, notice was given by way of a 1/8 page advertisement on April 9, 2020.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends the Planning Commission adopt Resolution No. PC 2-20 which recommends
that the City Council: adopt the zoning ordinance as presented or with any changes that the
Planning Commission feels should be made after discussing the matter; and direct staff to file a
Notice of Exemption.

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No. PC 2-20
e Exhibit A — Zoning Ordinance

Letters of Support

e Melia Homes letter dated April 10, 2020
G3 Urban letter dated April 13, 2020
City Ventures email dated April 14, 2020
City Ventures letter dated April 15, 2020



RESOLUTION NO. PC 2-20

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL
QUALITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF GARDENA, CALIFORNIA,
RECOMMENDING THAT THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE
ORDINANCE NO. 1820 MAKING ADDITIONAL CHANGES TO TITLE
18, ZONING, OF THE GARDENA MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO
RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

WHEREAS, City staff initiated zone text amendments to update Title 18 of the Gardena
Municipal Code, related to residential development; and

WHEREAS, on April 21, 2020, the Planning Commission of the City of Gardena held a
duly noticed public hearing on the draft Ordinance at which time it considered all evidence, both
written and oral.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF GARDENA DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS
FOLLOWS:

The Planning Commission hereby recommends that the City Council adopt the Ordinance
attached hereto as Exhibit A making changes to Title 18 of the Gardena Municipal Code, related
to residential development. For all of the reasons set forth in the reasoning provided by staff, the
Planning Commission believes that these changes represent good land use practices which are
required by public necessity, convenience and the general welfare.

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 21% day of April 2020.

BRENDA JACKSON, CHAIR
PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL
QUALITY COMMISSION

ATTEST:

RAYMOND BARRAGAN, SECRETARY

PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY COMMISSION
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

CITY OF GARDENA



PC Resolution No. 2-20

I, Raymond Barragan, Planning and Environmental Quality Commission Secretary of the
City of Gardena, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the Planning
and Environmental Quality Commission of the City of Gardena at a regular meeting thereof, held
the 21% day of April 2020, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

Attachments:

Exhibit A — Draft Ordinance



ORDINANCE NO. 1820

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDENA,
CALIFORNIA, MAKING ADDITIONAL CHANGES TO TITLE 18, ZONING,
OF THE GARDENA MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO RESIDENTIAL
DEVELOPMENT AND TIME EXTENSIONS FOR ENTITLEMENTS

WHEREAS, California is facing a housing crisis; and

WHEREAS, staff continues to receive applications for high density developments
which point out places where the City’s Zoning law should be adjusted to provide
additional flexibility to developers so that they may make individual determinations based
on market considerations as to the best layout for each project; and

WHEREAS, modifications to the development standards are required in order that
projects may be developed to the allowed densities of the zone; and

WHEREAS, staff will begin to work on an overall update to the City’s Zoning law
at a future time to modernize the City’s Zoning law; and

WHEREAS, staff has determined that it is in the best interests to continue to
process these changes in phases so that the simpler changes can continue to be quickly
implemented; and

WHEREAS, during the time that staff was working on the changes to the
development standards, the Pandemic caused by COVID-19 caused all non-essential
services to cease operations and caused havoc with the economy; and

WHEREAS, the period of recovery from the Pandemic will be not be immediate;
and

WHEREAS, the City Council believes that extensions should be granted for all
discretionary planning entitlements and applicants should have the ability to obtain
additional extensions as needed; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing on this
Ordinance on April 21, 2020 at which time it considered all evidence presented, both
written and oral; and

WHEREAS, at the close of the public hearing the Planning Commission adopted
a Resolution recommending approval of this Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the City Council held a duly noticed public hearing on this Ordinance
on May 12, 2020 at which time it considered all evidence presented, both written and oral;



Ordinance No. 1820

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDENA,
CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. FINDINGS.

A. The City Council finds that adopting the changes set forth in this Ordinance
represents good planning practices for the following reasons: it modernizes the City’s
Zoning law; it makes the Municipal Code easier to use; it makes sense to have different
development regulations in the medium and high density residential zones.

B. The City Council further finds that this Ordinance is consistent with the City’s
General Plan.

SECTION . Section 18.14.050 E of the Gardena Municipal Code relating to the R-2 zone
is hereby deleted.

E. [Deleted] Bwelling-unit-size:

SECTION 2. Section 18.16.050 E, H and Q of the Gardena Municipal Code relating to
the R-3 zone are hereby amended to read as follows; all other sections remain the same:

E. [Deleted] Bwelling-unit-size:




Ordinance No. 1820

H. Distances between buildings: The following distances shall apply to
buildings within the project site:
1. A minimum of six feet between main and accessory buildings;
2. A minimum of fifteen feet between main buildings; provided,
however:
a. A minimum of twenty feet for buildings front to front and with
interior courts;
b. A minimum of thirty feet for buildings front to front and with
driveways between structures; and
C. For buildings that are greater than two stories, the distance

shall be increased two and one-half feet between buildings for each floor over the second
floor;

Q. Storage space: a minimum of onetwe hundred-twenty cubic feet of storage
space shall be provided in-the-garage-of for each dwelling unit with a minimum_of four
feet in any direction. Such space may be located in the garage, in an outside closet, or
below stairways.

SECTION 3. Section 18.18.020 of the Gardena Municipal Code relating to development
standards in the R-4 zone is hereby amended to read as follows:

18.18.020 Development standards.

The development standards set forth herein shall apply and supersede any zoning
code provision in this title to the contrary.

A. Lot area: a minimum of five thousand square feet
B. Lot width:
1. A minimum of fifty feet for interior lots, and




Ordinance No. 1820

2. A minimum of fifty-five feet for corner lots;

C. Lot depth: a minimum of eighty feet;

A-D. Minimum Density. For any project approved after August 1, 2012, the
minimum permitted density shall be twenty units per acre for any residential
development. This subsection shall not apply to the expansion of any existing use.

E. Maximum Density. The maximum permitted density shall be as set forth in
this subsection; fractional units shall be rounded upward if such fraction is at or above the
five-tenths breakpoint:

1. Twenty-five units per acre for lots less than one-half acre;_and

2. Fwenty-sevenThirty units per acre for lots over between-one-half
acre and-one-acre;and

F.  Building Height. The maximum building height for habitable space shall not
exceed thirty-fivefeet—orforty feet, with_an additional five feet allowed for architectural
projections which are building elements such as towers, cupolas, decorative parapets that
screen equipment, and pitched roofs at a minimum pitch of four to twelve, that are added
to buildings to provide architectural interest without adding interior floor area, and also
include skylights and chimneys. In no event may the building exceed three-four stories.

G. Yards. For cluster developments, setbacks are calculated from the project
boundaries and not from individual units or buildings within the development.

1. Front yard setback: a minimum of ten feet; no more than fifty percent,
including driveways, shall be paved or otherwise covered with hardscaped materials. The
remaining area shall be permanently landscaped with softscape materials and provided
with a permanent irrigation system subject to city approval.

2. Side and rear vard setbacks:

a. A minimum of ten feet when the building is thirty-five feet or
less in height, including architectural projections, and the property directly abuts parcels
zoned R-1 or R-2;

b. A minimum of fifteen feet when the building exceeds thirty-five
feet in height, including architectural projections, and the property directly abuts parcels
zoned R-1 or R-2;




Ordinance No. 1820

C. A minimum of five feet when the property does not directly
abut parcels zoned R-1 or R-2, unless the property is a corner lot in which case, the street
side must be a minimum of ten feet;

3. Accessory buildings: one-story accessory buildings, other than a
garage, shall be set back four feet from the rear and side property lines when located in
the rear one-third of the lot. Garages may be constructed along the rear and side property
line when located in the rear one-third of the lot. Garages fronting on public streets shall
maintain_a minimum ten-foot yard setback. All garages shall be provided with garage
doors and new front facing garages and replacement garage doors for front facing
garages shall be sectional type doors;

H. Distances between buildings shall be governed by the Building Code.

l. Off-street parking: the provisions of Chapter 18.40 shall apply with the
exception that:

1. Tandem parking shall be allowed, but not for guest parking spaces.

2. For senior or income restricted units: one off-street parking space for
each one bedroom or studio unit.

J. ~ I I ina TH . land . . hall |

j -Usable open space: a minimum of 689 300 hundred square
feet of usable common or private open space shall be provided for each unit of all multiple-
family dwellings and condominiums in accordance with the minimum size requirements
of Section 18.42.065.

K. Signs: the provisions of Chapter 18.58 shall apply:

L. Fences: the provisions of Section 18.42.070 shall apply:

M. Refuse areas: the provisions of Section 18.42.130 shall apply;

N. Swimming pool areas: the provisions of Section 18.42.090 shall apply;

0. Projections permitted in required yards: the provisions of Section 18.42.100
shall apply;

P. Protection of intersection visibility: the provisions of Section 18.42.110 shall
apply;

Q. Storage space: a minimum of one hundred-twenty cubic feet of storage

space shall be provided for each dwelling unit with a minimum of four feet in any direction.
Such space may be located in the garage, in an outside closet, or below stairways.




Ordinance No. 1820

SECTION 4. Section 18.19.030 B of the Gardena Municipal Code related to the MU zone
is hereby amended to read as follows:

be
developed solely for residential uses or solely for uses permitted or conditionally permitted
in accordance with the provisions of the underlying zoning district.

1. If developed in_accordance with the provisions of the underlying
zoning district, sd i O ditionally-p itted-i underlying-zoning-distri
shall-be-alloewed—Site plan review shall not be required for such development unless
required by another provision of this title.

2. If developed solely for residential purposes, development shall be in
accordance with the provisions of this Chapter for residential development and site plan
review shall be required.

SECTION 5. Section 18.19.050 of the Gardena Municipal Code is hereby amended to
read as follows:

18.19.050 Uses prohibited.

A——All uses not listed in Sections 18.19.030 and 18.19.040 are prohibited,
unless determined to be similar pursuant to the provisions of Section 18.42.040.

B . - el of residential

SECTION 6. Subsections 18.19.060.B.1, C.3, D, E, F, I, J.1, and L of the Gardena
Municipal Code relating to development standards in the MUO zone are hereby amended
to read as follows, all other provisions of section 18.19.060 remain the same:

B. Minimum project area®:

1. One-half acre minimum, with the following exceptions:

* * *



Ordinance No. 1820

C. Density and intensity:
3. Residential by itself or as part of a mixed use project: the maximum
residential density shall be as follows, calculated over the portion of the project area
devoted to such use, including when such use is part of a vertical development:

a. Twenty-five units per acre maximum for sites less than one-
half acres;

b. Fwenty-five Thirty units per acre maximum for sites over at
least-one-half acre-butless-than-one-acreand.

greater-

D. [Deleted] Bwellingunitsize:

E. Maximum Building Height. The following height standards apply to
individual buildings within a project area:

1. Fhirty-fiveForty feet, with an additional five feet erfortyfeet-with-for

architectural projections if:

a. Adjacent to single-family (R-1) or low-density multiple-family

residential (R-2) zonesone-story-residentialuses; or

b Adjacent to a collector or major collector street.
> c oot _orf five £ " i | nroiecti i
. Adi dential ;

7




Ordinance No. 1820

23.  Fifty-five feet, with an additional five feet for or-sixty-feet-with
architectural projections if:

a. Adjacent to any use other than single-family (R-1) or low-

density multiple-family (R-2) residential zones:three-story-or-greaterresidential uses;—or
e =

b. Adjacent to an arterial street.
F. Yards: for mixed use projects, setbacks are calculated from the project

boundaries and not from individual units or buildings within the development.
1. Front yard setback:

a. Five feet from the public right of way for vertical residential
developments that do not have front doors facing the street;

b. Twenty feet from the public right of way for residential
developments that have front doors which face on to the street; and

C. Aa minimum of twelve feet from face of curb and a maximum
of twenty feet from face of curb for all other developments;

2. Side yard setback:

a. A minimum of ten feet when the building is thirty-five feet in
height or less, including architectural projections, and the property directly abuts parcels
zoned R-1 or R-2;

b. A minimum of fifteen feet when the building exceeds thirty-five
feet in height, including architectural projections, and the property directly abuts parcels
zoned R-1 or R-2;

C. A minimum of five feet when the property does not directly
abut parcels zoned R-1 or R-2, unless the property is a corner lot in which case, the street
side must be a minimum of ten feet;

3. Rear yard setback: tenfeetfrompropertyline;



Ordinance No. 1820

a. A minimum of fifteen feet when the building exceeds thirty-five
feet in height, including architectural projections, and the property directly abuts parcels
zoned R-1 or R-2;

b. A minimum of ten feet when the building is thirty-five feet in
height or less, including architectural projections, and the property directly abuts parcels
zoned R-1 or R-2;

C. A minimum of five feet when the property does not directly
abut parcels zoned R-1 or R-2, unless the property is a corner lot in which case, the street
side must be a minimum of ten feet.:

4. Building-to-building:Distances between buildings shall be governed
by the Building Code.

l. Usable open space:

1. Residential uses: a minimum of one hundred fifty square feet of
outdoor usable common or private open space shall be provided per dwelling unit in

accordance with the minimum size requirements of Section 18.42.065.




Ordinance No. 1820

2. Live/work uses: a minimum of one hundred square feet of either
outdoor usable common or private open space shall be provided for each live/work unit
in accordance with the requirements of Section 18.42.065.

3. The usable common open space requirements of residential mixed
use and live/work units can be combined into one or more large spaces to satisfy the
usable—commeon—open space requirements, so long as the space is located along or
directly accessed and visible from perimeter or interior streets.

* * *

J. Off-street parking: the provisions of Chapter 18.40 shall apply, with the
following exceptions:

1. Fandem-Residential and Live/Work parking: up—to—fiftypercentof

Pparking requirements for residential or live/work units may be satisfied by tandem

parking. Guest spaces may not be tandem. Garaged-Ttandem garage parking shall be

no smaller than twelve-10.5 feet wide by 38 ferty-feet long, as measured from the interior
walls;

L. Storage areasspace: a_minimum_ of one hundred-twenty cubic feet of
storage space shall be provided for each dwelling unit with a minimum of four feet in any
direction.  Ffor dwellrng units W|thout a private parklng garage general storage
cabinets/closets w

fepeaebrumt—'lihesterageeabmeteare encouraged to be located wrthln the parkmg area,
|n close proxrmlty to the respectlve units, or below |nter|or stalrwavs Eer—dwel#ngmrts

SECTION 7. Section 18.20.050B is hereby amended to read as follows:
B. Residential Units.

1. Multiple-family residential uses built as a mixed use shall be
restricted to the upper stories in a vertical development or the rear of the property in a
horizontal development.

2. [Deleted.] Fhe-minimum-size-of residential units-shall- be-as
follows:

__ sudiclefficioncwibachelor four hundrod fif ot

10



Ordinance No. 1820

3. Open Space Requirements. Each residential unit shall have a
minimum of one hundred fifty square feet of usable common and private open space in
accordance with the requirements of Section 18.42.065.:

_ N ‘e : it chall bo o

4. The maximum residential density shall be thirty-four units per acre.
5. If multifamily residential is the only use on the property:

a. The minimum density shall be twenty-four units per acre;

b. No more than fifty percent of the front yard setback,

including driveways, shall be paved or otherwise covered with hardscaped materials.
The remaining area shall be permanently landscaped with softscape materials and
provided with a permanent irrigation system subject to city approval.

SECTION 8. Section 18.39.015B of the Gardena Municipal Code is hereby deleted.

SECTION 9. Section 18.39.030B of the Gardena Municipal Code is hereby deleted.

5 Specific.pl lcations.f inal inal L shall
j -_[Deleted.]

SECTION 10. Section 18.39.040 of the Gardena Municipal Code is hereby amended to
read as follows:

11



Ordinance No. 1820

A. In addition to state requirements as specified in the California Government
Code Section 65450 et seq., the contents listed below shall be included in all specific
plans, unless the applicant—demonstrates—to—the—satisfaction—of—the community
development director determines that the item is clearly not applicable or relevant to the
specific plan application under consideration.

B. Specific plan contents_shall include the following, but need not be in the
order listed:

1. Title, table of contents, acknowledgements;

2. Summary statement;

3. Introduction:
a. Initiator of plan,
b. Purpose and intent,
C. Site location, brief description and maps,

d. Project history/background,

e. [Deleted] Relationship-to-neighberingjurisdictions,regional

f. Environmental assessment,
g. Related applications and documents;
4. Detailed description of site:

a. Topography,
b. Geology/soils,

C. Hydrology,

d. Biological resources,

e. Land use,

f. General plan and zoning designations,
g. Circulation,

12



Ordinance No. 1820

h. Cultural resources,
i. Public services,
j- Utilities,

k. Site summary,

Appropriate maps and diagrams;
Specific plan concepts:

a. Project goals and objectives,

b. e e e

C. Conceptual site plan/land use plan,
d. Transportation/circulation plan:

i. Private,

i Public,

iii. Internal and affected external,
iv. Pedestrian, vehicular and mass transit,

e. Grading plan,

f. Public facilities/utilities plan:
i. Sewage,
ii. Water,
iii. Drainage,
iv. Solid waste,
V. Energy,
Vi. Utilities,

g. Recreation and open space plan,

15



other changes;

7.

m.

n.

Ordinance No

Fire-protection/fuel-modification-plan[Deleted],

Natural and man-made resources protection,
Phasing program,

Home-owners association,

Landscape plan,

Appropriate maps and diagrams,

Other appropriate conceptual plans;

Development regulations and requirements:

a.

b.

Development standards,

Recreation and open space standards,
Parking,

Nonconformities,

Lighting standards,

Sign program,

Maintenance standards,

. 1820

Standards for accessory structures, additions, walls, fences,

Design guidelines:

a.

b.

C.

d.

Architecture,
Landscape, streetscape,
Views,

Performance standards;

General plan consistency:

14



Ordinance No. 1820

a. Applicable goals and policies,

b. How the specific plan meets the requirements of and
implements the general plan;

9. Implementation:
a. Phasing plan,
b. Precise plan review process,
C. Infrastructure improvements/coordination,
d. Financing measures,
e. Monitoring programs,
f. Administration of plan,
g. Amendment procedures.

SECTION 11. Section 18.40.040 A of the Gardena Municipal Code is hereby amended
to read as follows:

Number of Parking

Use Spaces Required

A. Residential:

Single-family: Two-car_enclosed
garage.

Fwo-familyLow-Density and Two spaces per

Medium-Density Multiple-Family dwelling unit in an

Residential enclosed garage or in
an-enclosed-parking
facilitystructure, per

el m

Two spaces per
dwelling unit, other

15



Ordinance No. 1820

Number of Parking

Use Spaces Required

High-Density and-multiple-family than a studio unit, one

dwellings_(anything over 20 units of which must be in an

per acre): enclosed garage or
parking structure and
the other which may
be in a covered

parking area.

Studio unit One space per
dwelling unit

Mobile home parks: Two spaces per
mobile home or trailer
on the same space
where the mobile
home or trailer is

located.
Accessory dwelling units: See Chapter 18.13.
Additional standards and See Section
requirements: 18.40.070

SECTION 12. Subsection 18.40.050 A and C of the Gardena Municipal Code relating to
parking spaces is hereby amended to read as follows:

A. Parking spaces shall have a minimum dimension of nine feet by eighteen
feet; parallel parking spaces shall have a minimum dimension of nine feet by twenty-five
two feet.

C. Compact parking spaces.

1. Compact parking shall ret-have exceed-twenty-fivepercent-of-all
required-parking-spaces-and-shall-have-a minimum dimension of eight feet by seventeen

feet. All compact spaces shall be so marked on the pavement and/or wheel stop.

2. Twenty-five percent of all non-residential parking may be compact in

size.

3. In the R-4 and MU zones, where there is a minimum of four quest
parking spaces, twenty-five percent of such spaces may be compact in size.

16



Ordinance No. 1820

4. Except as may specifically be allowed, Notwithstanding—any
provision-of this-code-to-the-contrary,-compact parking spaces shall not be considered as

satisfying the parking requirements for residential uses, as set forth in
Section 18.40.040(A).

SECTION 13. Section 18.40.050F relating to the tables and charts for parking spaces is
hereby amended by changing the minimum parking layout dimension for the stall length
for a parallel space to 22 feet from 25 feet.

SECTION 14. Section 18.40.070 relating to additional standards for residential parking
areas is hereby amended by revising subsection D to read as follows and adding a new
subsection G; all other sections remain the same:

D. Unless tandem parking is allowed, a two-car garage shall be fully enclosed
and have a minimum interior dimension of nineteen feet-twenty-feet in width by twenty
eighteen feet in depth. A garage designed for tandem parking shall have a minimum
interior dimension of twelve feet in width by ferty-enethirty-eight feet in depth. The
dBesignated parking area shall be designed to remain free and clear of all obstructions,
including, but not limited to, washer/dryer units, water heaters, trash enclosures, etc.

G. If parking spaces are not provided in an attached garage, then the spaces
in the parking structure or parking area shall be assigned to a specific unit.

SECTION 15. Section 18.42.150 is hereby amended to read as follows:

18.42.150 Security and lighting plan.

Complete security and lighting plans shall accompany all site development plans
for multiple-family development of four or more units and commercial and industrial
developments to ensure that safety and security issues are addressed in the design of
the development.

A. Lighting plans__for commercial and industrial developments shall

demonstrate an average of 2-foot candle with no single point less than 1-foot candle for
all public/common areas.

A-B. Lighting plans for multiple-family developments shall demonstrate an
average of 1-foot candle for all public/common areas.

SECTION 16. Section 18.44.020 of the Gardena Municipal Code is hereby amended to
read as follows:

18.44.020 Review

17



Ordinance No. 1820

A. Whenever a site plan review is required, a site plan for the total
development of a lot or lots that comprise the development project shall be approved
pursuant to the provisions of this chapter prior to the issuance of a building permit.

B. The planning commission shall hold a noticed, public hearing and approve,
conditionally approve, or deny site plans required by sections 18.44.010_A through G or
pursuant to any other provision of the Gardena Municipal Code, except as specified
herein.

1. Notice of hearings shall be given in accordance with government
Code Section 65091.

C. The community development director shall review and approve,
conditionally approve, or deny all other site plans.-anrd-ro-notice-or-public-hearing-shall
berequired-_Additionally, the community development director shall approve site plans
required by sections 18.44.010 B through G when the site plan relates only to minor
changes to the existing buildings and does not involve an expansion of more than ten
percent of existing square footage. In such cases, no notice or public hearing shall be
required. In such cases the community development director shall make all decisions
required by CEQA or other environmental laws. In his discretion, the community
development director may refer a site plan review application to the planning commission
when he believes that the application would be of concern to the surrounding community.

D. If a site plan is required by any other provision of this title, no notice or public
hearing is required and the matter shall be reviewed by the community development
director unless such provision requires otherwise.

SECTION 17. Section 18.44.030 of the Gardena Municipal Code is hereby amended to
read as follows:

18.44.030 Factors for Approval

A. A site plan shall be approved, or conditionally approved, only after finding
that the proposed development—including—the—uses and the physical design of the
development, is consistent with the intent and general purpose of the general plan and
provisions of the municipal code, and will not adversely affect the orderly and harmonious
development of the area and the general welfare of the city; otherwise such plans shall
be disapproved.

B. In addition to all other applicable zoning and development requirements and
policies, the following factors shall also be considered in determining whether the site
plan shall be approved:

1. The dimensions, shape and orientation of the parcel,

2. The placement of buildings and structures on the parcel;

138



Ordinance No. 1820

3. The height, setbacks, bulk and building materials;

4. The distance between buildings or structures;

5. The location, number and layout of off-street parking and loading
spaces;

6. The internal vehicular patterns and pedestrian safety features;

7. The location, amount and nature of landscaping;

8. The placement, height and direction of illumination of light standards;

9. The location, number, size and height of signs;

10.  The location, height and materials of walls, fences or hedges;

11.  The location and method of screening refuse and storage areas, roof
equipment, pipes, vents, utility equipment and all equipment not contained in the main
buildings of the development;

12.
Deleted]; and

13.  Such other information which the community development director
or commission may require to make the necessary findings that the provisions of this code
are being complied with.

SECTION 18. Section 18.44.060 of the Gardena Municipal Code relating to time limits
for Site Plan Review is hereby amended to read as follows:

18.44.060 Time limits for development.

A. The subject property under a site plan review shall be developed within a
period of time not exceeding twelve months from and after the date of its approval, and,
if not so developed and utilized, such approval automatically shall become null and void
at the expiration of such twelve-month period.

B. Upon a showing of good cause, the community development director may
grant one or more an-extensions of up to six months_each, upon receipt of a written
request from the applicant prior to expiration.

C. When such a request for an extension is filed, a fee in an amount

established by city council resolution shall be paid for the purpose of defraying the costs
incurred by the city in processing such extension of time.

19



Ordinance No. 1820

SECTION 19. Section 18.46.040H of the Gardena Municipal Code related to time limits
for conditional use permits is hereby amended to read as follows:

H. Time Limits for Development.

1. The subject property and the use granted under a conditional use
permit shall be developed within a period of not to exceed twelve months from and after
the date of granting such permit, and, if not so developed and utilized, such conditional
use permit automatically shall become null and void at the expiration of such twelve month
period.

2. The permittee may apply in writing to the Planning Commission for
ene-an extension of time;-notto-exceed-six-menths, within which to develop and use such
conditional use permit. Such application shall be made prior to the expiration of the
utilization period. The-applicationforsuch-extension-of-time-shall-be-in-duplicate-When
such an application for an extension is filed, a filing fee established by city council
resolution shall be paid for the purpose of defraying the costs incidental to the processing
of such extension. Upon a showing of good cause, tFhe Planning
Commissioncemmission—after-due-consideration, shallk-may either-grant one or more or

deny-such-extensions of up to six months each -ef-time-for-such-development-and-use-
Cabrosoconoeenc o obe oo copen el

SECTION 20. Section 18.48.030H of the Gardena Municipal Code related to time limits
for variances is hereby amended to read as follows:

H. __ Time Limits for Development.

1. The construction or occupancy of land or buildings granted under a
variance shall be utilized within a period of not to exceed twelve months from and after
the date of granting such permit, and, if not so developed and utilized, such variance
automatically shall become null and void at the expiration of such twelve-month period.

2. The permittee may apply in writing to the Pplanning Ceommission for
ene-an extension of time, notto-exceed-six-months;-within which to develop and use such
variance. Such application shall be made prior to the expiration of the utilization period.
When such an application for an extension is filed, a filing fee established by city council
resolution shall be paid for the purpose of defraying the costs incidental to the processing
of such extension. Upon a showing of good cause, tFhe Planning
Commissioneommission,—after-due—consideration; shall-may either-grant one or more

extensions of up to six months each erdeny-such-extension-of-timeforsuch-development
cpeeo— b o cne s codene on ol be soenniiiogd]

SECTION 21. Section 18.50.040E of the Gardena Municipal Code related to time limits
for administrative adjustments is hereby amended to read as follows:

E. Time Limits for Development. The construction or occupancy of land or
buildings granted under the administrative adjustment shall be utilized within a period not

20



Ordinance No. 1820

to exceed twelve months from and after the date of approval, and if not so developed and
utilized, such administrative adjustment shall automatically become null and void at the
expiration of such period. The permittee may apply in writing to the community
development director for an ene-time-extension_of time, rotto-exceed-six-months,-prior
to the expiration of the utilization period. Upon a showing of good cause, the community
development director may grant one or more extensions of up to six months each.Only

SECTION 22. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Gardena Municipal Code to the
contrary, all entitlements that were in effect as of March 16, 2020 for site plan reviews,
conditional use permits, variances, and administrative adjustments are automatically
extended for a six month period from the date of expiration without the need to apply for
an extension pursuant to Sections 18.44.060, 18.44.040, 18.48.030, and 18.50.040.

SECTION 23. CEQA. This Ordinance is categorically exempt from CEQA pursuant to
the common sense exemption set forth in Guidelines section 15061(b)(3) that CEQA only
applies to projects which have the potential for causing a significant effect on the
environment and where it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the
activity will have a significant effect, the activity is not subject to CEQA. None of the
changes to the development standards and definitions set forth above would change the
density, intensity, or allowed uses or would have other effects on the environment. The
changes are primarily a reorganization and clarification of the existing code and practices
relating to residential development standards. For these same reasons, the Ordinance
also qualifies for an exemption under CEQA Guidelines section 15305 (Class 5) for minor
alterations in land use limitations in areas with an average slope of less than 20%. No
part of Gardena has a slope in excess of 20%. The changes are not for any specific
project and therefore will not impact any environmental resource of hazardous or critical
concern, will not create cumulative impacts, or impacts to scenic highways, hazardous
waste sites, or historical resources. Because this is an ordinance pertaining to citywide
development standards there will not be any significant effects on the environment due
to unusual circumstances. As such, staff is directed to file a Notice of Exemption.

SECTION 24. Severability. If any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence,
clause or phrase of this ordinance, or any part thereof is for any reason held to be
unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion of this
ordinance or any part thereof. The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed
each section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase thereof,
irrespective of the fact that any one or more section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph,
sentence, clause or phrase be declared unconstitutional.

SECTION 25. This Ordinance shall take effect on the thirty-first day after passage.

SECTION 26. Certification. The City Clerk shall certify the passage of this ordinance
and shall cause the same to be entered in the book of original ordinances of said City;
shall make a minute passage and adoption thereof in the records of the meeting at which

21



Ordinance No. 1820

time the same is passed and adopted; and shall, within fifteen (15) days after the passage
and adoption thereof, cause the same to be published as required by law, in a publication
of general circulation.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this day of , 2020.

TASHA CERDA, Mayor

ATTEST:

MINA SEMENZA, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

CARMEN VASQUEZ, City Attorney

22



p 949-759-4367

MELIA HOMES o e A

8951 Research Drive Suite 100 Irvine, CA 92618

April 10, 2020

Gardena Planning Commission:

As an active developer within the City of Gardena, the proposed ordinance modifications and
clarifications will help the City achieve goals of opportunity for new housing, while maintaining a high-
quality living environment for current and new residents. The proposed modifications allow modern
clarifications and regulations that will allow market demands to be met, while protecting compatibility
with neighboring properties. They also provide solid development standards that should eliminate
cumbersome interpretive evaluation for both the development community and your staff.

[ commend you and your staff for having the foresight and responsiveness to help meet the need for
quality housing into the future. T urge you to accept and recommend to City Council this proposed
Ordinance 1820.

Respectfully,

Chad Brown
Melia Homes, VP Planning and Development



urban

To:

City of Gardena

Raymond Barragan

Community Development Director

RE: ZONING CHANGES

Gardena City Council/Planning Commission:

We at G3Urban would like to offer this letter in support of the Zoning changes currently being
considered by the City of Gardena. In our 30+ years in the development industry, we have never
experienced a City with the foresight, consideration, and determination to evolve in order to encourage
sustainable growth that is in keeping with a changing marketplace, that we have seen in Gardena. Staff,
Planning Commission, and City Council are to be commended!

Raymond Barragan and Lisa Kranitz have, as stewards of the City’s development interests, been
instrumental in reviewing the Zoning from a variety of angles: What are the City’s development goals?
What do developers need to meet these goals? What are the barriers to entry and how do we
overcome these? How does the current Code hinder meeting these new goals? To ask these questions,
and have the relationship with the development community to garner honest and thoughtful responses
is the key to identifying proper development standards.

?

G3Urban has read the draft of the new Zoning changes and is in full support of their adoption into the
Municipal Code.

Thank you for the opportunity to be a part of the process, and solution, for an improved and more
vibrant Gardena! We look forward to working with the City for many years to come.

de Gardner, Architect
President of Development

1% ppm 20

15235 western ave
gardena, ca 90249



John F. Signo

From: Michelle Thrakulchavee <michellet@cityventures.com>

Sent: Tuesday, April 14, 2020 10:08 AM

To: Amanda Acuna

Cc: John F. Signo; Kim Prijatel; Shayan Emtiaz; Spencer Dela Cruz
Subject: RE: City of Gardena - Residential Development Standards Ordinance
Hi Amanda,

Thank you for sending this to me. Our Senior VP of Development had a chance to go through the proposed Ordinance
and offered the following comments:

“Most of the recommendations made at the meeting with the developers have been incorporated and this will
enable us to get a lot more density with reduced setbacks, open space (and allowance to combine common and
private to meet it), smaller parking spaces (inside garage and out), some compact spaces allowed to meeting
guest parking, no commercial required in MOU zone (can be 100% res). They made changes to all Res Zones. |
wish all cities were this progressive!”

Needless to say, we're very excited about the City’s leadership in doing all it can to encourage reinvestment and
redevelopment in your City and will continue to aggressively pursue opportunities in the City on both privately owned
parcels, as well as publicly-owned parcels (to the extent they’re available).

Is there anything you need from us to assist in the approval? Perhaps a support letter? Please let us know. We're happy
to help!

Best,
Michelle

Michelle Thrakulchavee | Managing Director | Acquisitions & Development
949.258.7536 {direct} | 805.657.4535 {mobile} | michellet@cityventures.com {email}

ig City Ventures

3121 Michelson Drive, Suite 150 | Irvine, California 92612 {address}
Website | Twitter | Facebook | Instagram

From: Amanda Acuna <AAcuna@cityofgardena.org>

Sent: Friday, April 10, 2020 4:15 PM

To: Michelle Thrakulchavee <michellet@cityventures.com>

Cc: John F. Signo <jsigno@cityofgardena.org>

Subject: City of Gardena - Residential Development Standards Ordinance

Good Afternoon Michelle,

| hope you are doing well. Back in February you came to a meeting at Gardena City Hall to discuss with the Planning Staff
about potential changes to the City’s residential development standards. | wanted to provide you with a copy of the

1



latest draft Ordinance. We will be taking the proposed amendments to the Planning Commission on Tuesday April 21°, |
have attached the notice for more information. If you were to have any comments on the proposed Ordinance it would
be helpful to have that ahead of time to be able to present to our Commission. If you have any questions please feel free
to reach out. Have a great weekend!

Amanda Acuna

Planning Assistant | City of Gardena

1700 West 162nd Street | Gardena CA | 90247

Phone 310.217.6110| Fax 310.217.9698 | aacuna@cityofgardena.org
Website: www.cityofgardena.org




8-
]

City Ventures

April 15, 2020

Raymond Barragan

Community Development Manager
City of Gardena

1700 West 162nd Street

Gardena, CA 90247

RE: New Proposed Development Standards for Residential Zones
Dear Mr. Barragan:

City Ventures strongly supports the proposed changes to the Gardena Zoning Code related to Residential
Development. The updated code, if adopted, will provide the flexibility needed for the development
community to design and build projects of varying densities to meet the housing needs of the area. The
City of Gardena is very progressive in understanding the demand for new housing and making the
necessary adjustments to support the types of projects being built today. We strongly encourage the
Planning Commission and City Council to adopt the proposed changes. We look forward to the
opportunity to work with the City of Gardena in the future.

Sincerely,
CITY VENTURES

Prijatel
Senior Vice President of Development




	AGENDA April 21 2020 PC Meeting (006) (002)
	20_03_03 PCMIN
	CITY OF GARDENA
	PLANNING & ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY COMMISSION
	TUESDAY, MARCH 3, 2020, MEETING
	Called to order by Chair Jackson at 7:00 P.M.
	ORAL COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE PUBLIC
	PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY COMMISSION REPORTS

	RAYMOND BARRAGAN, SECRETARY
	Planning and Environmental Quality Commission

	1_Staff report (Ord No. 1820)
	2_Resolution PC No. 2-20 (Ord No. 1820)
	3_Ordinance No. 1820 4-14-20
	Melia Support Letter PC 4-21-20
	G3 Zoning Changes Letter of Support
	City Ventures Email of Support 041420
	City Ventures Support Letter for Proposed Changes to Gardena Zoning Code 4.15.20

